A REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE COUNTY OF JAMES CITY, VIRGINIA, WAS HELD ON THE SEVENTH DAY OF NOVEMBER, TWO-THOUSAND AND SEVEN, AT 7:00 P.M. IN THE COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER BOARD ROOM, 101-F MOUNTS BAY ROAD, JAMES CITY COUNTY, VIRGINIA.

1. ROLL CALL

<u>Planning Commissioners</u> <u>Staff Present:</u>

<u>Present:</u> Marvin Sowers, Director of Planning George Billups Adam Kinsman, Deputy County Attorney

Mary Jones Jason Purse, Senior Planner
Rich Krapf Ellen Cook, Senior Planner
Tony Obadal Kate Sipes, Senior Planner
Shereen Hughes Ellen Cook, Senior Planner

Jim Kennedy Terry Costello, Development Management

Assistant

Absent: Jack Fraley

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Hughes opened the public comment period.

There being no public comments, Ms. Hughes closed the public hearing.

3. MINUTES

A. October 3, 2007 Regular Meeting

Mr. Kennedy motioned to approve the minutes from the October 3rd regular meeting.

Ms. Jones seconded the motion.

In a unanimous voice vote the minutes were approved (5-0). (Absent: Fraley, Obadal had not arrived)

4. COMMITTEE AND COMMISSION REPORTS

A. <u>Development Review Committee (DRC) Report</u>

Ms. Jones presented the report stating that the DRC met October 31, 2007. The DRC reviewed three cases. The DRC recommended preliminary approval subject to agency comments for C-0107-2007, McDonalds Sign Relocation with a vote of 4-1. The second case was SP-0039-2007, Ironbound Park: the DRC determined that the Site Plan was consistent with the Master Plan, and approved the setback modifications and the sidewalk waiver with a vote of 5-0. The Committee reviewed SP-0056-2007, White Hall Club House, and recommended preliminary approval subject to agency comments with a vote of 5-0. The DRC also added a condition requiring the Farmhouse Architecture Plan to come back for review to the DRC. During the DRC meeting, Mr. Kennedy expressed his concerns about the air quality in Building C, and requested staff to contact the appropriate parties to ensure the health and safety of those attending in that boardroom.

Mr. Billups motioned to approve the report.

Mr. Krapf seconded the motion.

In a unanimous voice vote, the DRC report from October 31, 2007 was approved (5-0). (Absent: Fraley, Obadal had not arrived)

B. Policy Committee Report

Mr. Krapf gave the report as Mr. Fraley was absent. He stated the Policy Committee met on October 19, 2007 to review a proposal from staff to update the definition of "affordable housing" in the Zoning Ordinance. Staff has drafted a proposal to eliminate the disparity between the sales price required for a density bonus in a Residential Cluster Overlay and the sales price used in negotiating affordable housing proffers. The Committee voted 4-0 to recommend approval. The second item was a discussion of the Residential Cluster language to mirror other sections of the Zoning Ordinance, specifically those for Mixed Use and Planned Use Developments. The Committee recommended approval 4-0. Finally the Committee considered a request from AT&T/Cingular Wireless to amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for alternative mounted wireless communication antennas atop structures over 120 in height. The proposed language would not allow the alternative mounted structures to exceed the maximum height of the already approved structure. The Policy Committee voted 4-0 to approve the amendment.

C. Comprehensive Plan Update

Ms. Hughes spoke about the Comprehensive Plan Update. She stated that on November 1st the Planning Commission met for a special meeting to discuss and consider potential CPT members based on a total of 36 applicants. The meeting was attended by all but one Commissioner. After Mr. Fraley presented a summary of the application process, and the Planning Commission went into a closed session to discuss the

candidates. During the meeting, the Commission discussed the applicants and identified seven potential individuals that they felt when compiled as a team, would comprise a strong representative group. She also mentioned the article in the Virginia Gazette, and an email that was received by one Commissioner that presented the idea that this process was secretive. Ms. Hughes stated that the Commission has made a large effort to make the process open. Ms. Hughes read the names of those selected: Vaughn Poller, William Spaller, Susan Sullivan-Tubach, Charlotte Jones, Robert Keith, Glendora James and Thomas Fitzpatrick. She stated this list will be provided to the Planning staff and will be made available to anyone who requests it.

D. Other Committee/Committee Reports

There were no other reports.

5. PLANNING COMMISSION CONSIDERATIONS

A. <u>Planning Commission 2008 Meeting Schedule</u>

Ms. Hughes stated there may be complications with the schedule since two Planning Commissioners will be vacating their positions, and these two individuals are also on the DRC. She stated that she has discussed this with the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors to ensure that two individuals are chosen in January to fill these vacancies. Mr. Kennedy stated that he intended to be at the January meeting and serve until his vacancy is filled.

Ms. Jones suggested moving the first DRC meeting in 2008 from January 2nd to January 3rd, in order to provide more time to review information.

Mr. Kennedy asked Mr. Kinsman about the timing of himself and Ms. Jones attending the January 8th Board of Supervisors meeting and then attending the Planning Commission meeting on January 9, 2008. Mr. Kinsman did state that once the oath is taken the Planning Commissioner would have to resign his seat. He also stated that one Board of Supervisors member may serve on the Planning Commission.

Ms. Jones made a motion for approval of the calendar, changing the first DRC meeting from January 2nd to January 3rd.

Mr. Kennedy seconded the motion.

In a unanimous voice vote, the motion was approved (6-0). (Absent: Fraley)

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A. Z-4-07 / MP-4-07 Stonehouse Planned Community Amendment

Mr. Sowers stated staff's concurrence with the applicant's request for a deferral to the December 5, 2007 Planning Commission meeting.

Judy Dean, 10225 Sycamore Landing Rd, spoke on the pedestrian connection to Sycamore Landing Road. She wanted to be on record that she cannot support the intrusion of future residents into their community that would result if trail connections were made. She felt that any connection whether vehicular or otherwise, to Sycamore Landing Road is not acceptable. Ms. Dean felt that access would place an undue burden on those living in the area currently. Her preference would be to have no pedestrian connection to Sycamore Landing Road at all.

Mr. Kennedy motioned for deferral.

Ms. Jones seconded the motion.

In a roll call vote the deferral was approved. (6-0). AYE: Krapf, Jones, Kennedy, Billups, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

B. SUP-21-07 Tiki Climbing & Grinding Professional Tree Services

Ms. Ellen Cook stated that this case was presented to the Planning Commission at its 10/3/07 meeting, but was deferred at the request of the applicant so that he could meet with neighbors and consider Commission suggestions. Ms. Cook stated that it is staff understands that the applicant met with neighbors in the intervening weeks, and staff also understands that the applicant has been circulating a petition. She stated that Mr. Timothy Soderholm has also updated the information previously provided to staff regarding the number of his employees that leave their vehicles on site during the day (one part time employee) and the equipment he stores on site (one stump grinder instead of two). She also stated that the applicant has also provided a conceptual landscape plan to the County as part of the SUP condition. Ms. Cook stated that the applicant has stated that he would be willing to allow a bus stop on the property. Staff has advised the applicant that the bus stop could be shown as part of the final site plan. Staff has not included a bus stop as a condition of the Special Use Permit as, while the applicant is offering to allow for one on his property, placing a condition requiring one as part of the use permit does not appear to fall within the guidelines for a legal nexus between the permit and the condition as advised by the County Attorney's Office. Ms. Cook stated that staff does not find the proposal consistent with the Low Density Residential Comprehensive Plan designation, consistent with the character of the surrounding area, and does not find that the size of the parcel, and the location and intensity of the use on the parcel, allow for conditions which would sufficiently overcome these concerns. For these reasons, staff recommends denial of this application to the Planning Commission. She also stated should the Planning Commission wish to recommend approval, staff recommends that the conditions listed in the staff report be placed on the case.

Ms. Hughes asked if the applicant ran his business as a home occupation at another location.

Ms. Cook stated that according to the County's Zoning records, the applicant ran his business as a home occupation from another location.

Ms. Hughes asked if the applicant filed a home occupation application for the current residence.

Ms. Cook stated that the business was in operation when staff was made aware of it, and that it was outside the scope of the definition of home occupation. She stated at that point it was determined a special use permit was required.

Ms. Hughes stated that the applicant listed his mailing address as Centerville Road, but that the driveway was on Settlers Lane. She asked what was the correct address.

Ms. Cook stated that for each corner lot, the Real Estate Office assigns two addresses. In this instance, Ms. Cook was unsure how the address was arrived at, but the lot was plotted as part of a residential subdivision in the 1960's.

Ms. Hughes opened the public hearing and asked the applicant if he wished to speak.

Mr. Soderholm stated that the address in all his closing documents was 6293 Centerville Rd and that it was zoned A-1. He did not realize that he needed a special use permit at this current address. He stated he did operate his business at another location but was forced to move due to the neighbors, and that the size of the lot was too small. Mr. Soderholm asked the post office which address to use and he was informed that he could use either one. He stated that he was not aware his lot was part of a subdivision.

Mr. Kevin Grady, speaking on behalf of Mr. Soderholm, stated that Mr. Soderholm did everything requested from the Planning Commission. Mr. Grady stated Mr. Soderholm met with the neighbors, invited them to look at the property and the equipment being stored there. He stated that Mr. Soderholm received the approval of 13 of the 18 neighbors in writing, although the neighbors did have some concerns. One of these was the bus stop for the children in the area. Mr. Grady stated that Mr. Soderholm contacted the Department of Transportation. Mr. Grady showed what the Department stated they would be willing to provide. He also stated that Mr. Soderholm would have to provide the Department with an easement, which he is willing to do. Mr. Grady stated that the neighbors wanted to have a fence installed on the side of the house. He stated Mr. Soderholm had plans to complete this. Mr. Grady stated the neighbors did not want this application to have an open ended agreement for growth. Mr. Grady stated that Mr. Soderholm was more than willing to keep things the same as it is now. Mr. Grady stated that Mr. Soderholm has agreed not to have a sign on the property. He stated that Mr. Soderholm's office is in a portion of his house, with just a desk, file cabinet, computer, etc. He stated that there are no individuals coming and going. He stated that Mr. Soderholm had his log books present to prove when employees are at the premises and

the hours of operation. Mr. Grady stated that he and Mr. Soderholm are confident that the neighbors are satisfied with the improvements that Mr. Soderholm has done. He stated that the most important thing to Mr. Soderholm is to be able to run his business and support his family.

- Mr. Soderholm showed pictures of his backyard and the equipment being stored. He stated that some of the equipment has been moved off of the property. He stated that the area used for storage is approximately 2800 square feet. Mr. Soderholm stated that from Centerville Road no equipment can be seen. He showed his landscape plan and what has already been installed.
- Mr. Krapf asked Mr. Soderholm if he had an idea of the financial impact of stormwater management and the potential ramifications of an environmental assessment and if he had sufficient space on his property for a BMP and provides the safeguards.
- Mr. Soderholm answered that he had 185 feet of 15 inch pipe that drains all water. To date there has not been any problem with standing water. He stated that the corner part of the lot tends to collect, but drains within 24 to 48 hours.
- Mr. Krapf stated that it was his understanding that given the current circumstances that the pipe was not adequate for the amount of impervious cover that was on the property.
- Ms. Cook answered that items that have been installed on the property have not been in coordination with the Environmental Division. She stated that with the site plan review, the environmental assessment and review would need to be done.
- Mr. Soderholm stated that he is willing to comply with whatever is determined to be needed.
- Mr. Obadal asked if Mr. Soderholm was contending that this application involved a home occupation.
- Mr. Soderholm stated that he did work out of his home, however his equipment is stored at the residence and all consultations are done off site.
 - Mr. Obadal asked if there was a chipper on the property.
 - Mr. Soderholm answered, yes there was one stored, but it is used off site only.
 - Mr. Obadal questioned the idea of his business being a home occupation.
- Mr. Soderholm stated that he did not know a special use permit was required to operate his business out of his home before buying the property.
 - Mr. Obadal asked if the chipper created noise at this site.

Mr. Soderholm answered no, it only creates noise where it is being used, and that this piece of equipment is only being stored at his residence.

Mr. Obadal questioned the idea that his property is part of a subdivision.

Mr. Soderholm stated that he had the option of putting a driveway either on Centerville Road or Settlers Lane. His driveway is on Settlers Lane.

Mr. Obadal discussed the A-1 ordinance stating the area requirements. He felt that the lot size is small for the business that is currently there.

Mr. Soderholm stated that if the special use permit is not approved, the only things that will be removed from the property will be a dump trailer, a bobeat, a chipper, and a flatbed trailer with a stump grinder. He stated that all this equipment takes up no more than 400 square feet on the property.

Mr. Obadal reiterated what is stated in the A-1 Zoning Ordinance.

Mr. Grady stated that Mr. Soderholm understands that he is not in compliance with the current code requirements, that this is the reason he is seeking a special use permit. Most of this equipment is taken offsite and no noise is being made by the equipment.

Ms. Annette Gilbert, who lives at 6301 Centerville Road, spoke on behalf of the applicant. She stated that the applicant has done several things to gain approval of the neighbors. She asked Mr. Obadal to restate the definition of home occupation.

Mr. Obadal did so.

Ms. Gilbert answered that she lives across the street. She stated that she has seen employees coming to work, and that she does not hear any noises from any equipment, and that the employees use care when leaving and returning to the property. Ms. Gilbert stated that many neighbors run businesses out of their homes, yet they make demands on his business.

Ms. Kristin Wilson, who lives at 16 Settlers Lane, stated that she does not want Mr. Soderholm not be able to run his business out of his home and provide for his family, but was concerned this would undermine the area and it would become more commercial. She requested that if the special use permit is approved, that the open area on his property not be developed for any commercial use, and that the fencing be completed that the applicant spoke of, and that there be no signage at all.

Mr. Brent Peterson, who lives at 101 Ridgecrest Circle, spoke on behalf of the applicant. Mr. Peterson felt that Mr. Soderholm has made an effort to address all the stipulations that were given to him at the last meeting. He felt that Mr. Soderholm has made several improvements to his property. Mr. Peterson and Mr. Soderholm measured

how much of his property is affected by the storage. Mr. Peterson stated that this amount is approximately 8 percent. He felt that this amount is small in regards to the size lot. He also stated that last time there were several people who spoke against this application, where at this meeting there were none.

Mr. Robert Soderholm, who lives at 46 Yeardley Loop, also spoke on behalf of his son, the applicant. He stated that his son had a desire to serve the community. He also stated that his son is a young business person who is trying to provide for his family. Mr. Soderholm also stated that he has never seen standing water on his son's property. He reiterated the statement that his son has agreed not to store any other additional equipment. He also stated that his son's services are needed during times of crisis and disaster. He further stated that if this application is denied, it will be inhibiting him from providing for his family and putting a further financial burden for him by relocating the business.

Mr. Obadal asked if the applicant was willing to use the property for a limited amount of storage.

Ms. Cook stated that there is a condition that limits the amount of storage to a certain area, and that the applicant is willing to comply.

Mr. Soderholm stated that the 4000 square foot in the back of the property is the only area allowed for storage.

Mr. Obadal asked whether the applicant was putting any landscaping between his property and his neighbor.

Mr. Soderholm stated he put a berm in to minimize noise from Centerville Road. He also stated that he is constructing a fence to go around the back part of the lot. Mr. Soderholm showed pictures of the berm and the fence that is partial installed. Mr. Soderholm also clarified what was his neighbor's fence and what he himself has installed.

Mr. Kennedy asked if the applicant had a business license.

Mr. Soderholm stated yes that he does have one.

Mr. Kennedy asked the applicant when he located on this property, did he get a new business license or did he use the existing one.

Mr. Soderholm stated that he did not apply for a new one at the time he moved, but did change the address once he had to renew the license.

Mr. Kinsman stated that the Commissioner of Revenue issues the business license and the Zoning Office checks for compliance.

Mr. Soderholm stated that when he re-applied for his business license is when his

address was changed. Mr. Soderholm was contacted by the Zoning Office and informed that he would have to apply for a special use permit. He then submitted an application for a special use permit.

Mr. Kennedy stated that when he moved, that is the time he should have changed the address with the Commissioner of Revenue. He stated that he is concerned when applicants ask for forgiveness after the fact. He stated that he did appreciate that Mr. Soderholm now has the support of his neighbors.

Mr. Soderholm did not realize that a special use permit was needed in the A-1 District, and thought that this type of business would be allowed.

Ms. Hughes closed the public hearing.

Mr. Kennedy stated that he appreciates small business and he believes in home based businesses. He also appreciated the fact that the applicant has gained support from his neighbors. He did state he was concerned about the procedures that were and were not followed. Mr. Kennedy did state that he would be supportive of this application.

Mr. Krapf stated that he was sympathetic to the applicant and all his efforts. His stated that he had concerns with compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood and whether his business provides a public benefit. Mr. Krapf felt that the answer was no to both. He also felt that this was not compliant with the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Krapf also felt that by denying this application it would not preclude the applicant from moving his business to another location. He stated that he felt that the application should not be approved.

Mr. Billups stated that he felt since most of the neighbors supported his application, and that the applicant had agreed to conditions that were placed upon him, that the democratic process should prevail. Mr. Billups stated that he felt that requiring the applicant to provide stormwater management was beyond what should be required of him. He also stated that he felt this type of business was compatible with the A-1 Zoning. Mr. Billups felt strongly that this application should be approved, and if there are conditions, that they should be moderate and not place an undue financial burden on the applicant.

Ms. Jones stated that she will support this application with the attached conditions. She does have some reservations that the applicant did not show due diligence when changing addresses regarding the business license. Ms. Jones felt that the space used for storage was not that large. Ms. Jones did state that the applicant might want to consider the option of locating offsite. She felt that the conditions concerning stormwater management may become very costly to the applicant. Ms. Jones did state also that she felt this Mr. Soderholm's business did provide a public benefit.

Mr. Obadal stated he did not see a public benefit with this business. He also stated that Ordinances needed to be enforced and that the Comprehensive Plan needs to

be used as a guide. He also stated that he felt the lot size was too small for this type of business. Mr. Obadal felt that the lot size requirement in the Zoning Ordinance was there to protect residential neighborhoods from commercial uses.

Ms. Hughes stated that she felt the applicant knew the procedures concerning the home occupation. She stated she appreciated the fact that he has a young business but she also felt that he circumvented the rules. She felt the applicant should have known what to do when he relocated his business. Ms. Hughes felt that this property is part of a residential subdivision and that this type of business is not appropriate at this site. She also mentioned that the stormwater management requirements will most likely be very costly. Ms. Hughes stated she cannot support this application.

Mr. Kennedy made a motion to approve the application

Ms. Jones seconded the motion.

In a roll call vote the result was a 3/3 tie (3-3). AYE: Jones, Kennedy, Billups. NAY: Krapf, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

Mr. Kinsman stated that the Code requires that the Planning Commission give the Board some guidance. He stated that there are a couple of options, one being to wait until next month when seven members are available, and re-vote, or send to the Board of Supervisors with no recommendation.

Mr. Kennedy stated he had no problem sending it to the Board with no recommendation.

Mr. Obadal asked if it is sent to the Board with no recommendation, can the comments and suggestions be attached with the application.

Mr. Kinsman stated that there is a comprehensive set of minutes that is part of the application that is reviewed by the Board of Supervisors.

Ms. Sowers also stated the there is a representative from the Planning Commission that attends the Board meetings; therefore if there can be added input. Mr. Sowers also stated that as long as the special use permit is moving forward the applicant is allowed to continue operating his business.

Mr. Kennedy asked if the application was heard at the December Planning Commission meeting would it be heard at the December Board meeting.

Mr. Sowers stated that there is only one Board meeting in December. He stated it could possibly go to this one.

Mr. Krapf made a motion to send the application to the Board of Supervisors with a neutral recommendation.

Ms. Jones seconded the motion.

In a unanimous voice vote, the motion was approved (6-0). (Absent: Fraley)

C. Z-5-07 Ingram Road Rezoning

Mr. Sowers stated staff's concurrence with the applicant's request for a deferral to the December 5, 2007 Planning Commission meeting.

Ms. Jones motioned for deferral.

Mr. Krapf seconded the motion.

In a unanimous voice vote, the deferral was approved. (6-0). (Absent: Fraley)

D. <u>SUP-26-07 Williamsburg Dodge Trailer Sales</u>

Mr. Jason Purse presented staff's report for a special use permit to allow for the retail sale of trailers at 7101 Richmond Road. No new infrastructure will be built as part of this application; the only change would be the sale of trailers on the Dodge Site. Currently, the Honda Dealership, also owned by the Williamsburg Auto Group is operating under an approved special use permit that allows for trailers sales, but with the addition of new stock they wish to switch the trailer sales portion of the business to the Dodge site. Mr. Purse stated that staff believes the proposed amendment to sell utility trailers, in addition to selling automobiles at the existing Williamsburg Dodge Dealership, is a valid commercial enterprise and complimentary land use. Staff also believes that the conditions placed on this special use permit mitigate possible aesthetic concerns about the display of the trailers along Richmond Road. He also stated based on this information, staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of this application to the James City County Board of Supervisors with the attached special use permit conditions.

Ms. Hughes opened the public hearing.

Mr. Dodson spoke on behalf of Williamsburg Auto Group. He stated that approximately five years ago the County granted a special use permit for utility trailer sales at their Honda site. He stated that he is not requesting to have two trailer sites. Mr. Dodson stated that if this application is approved, all of the trailers will be moved from the Honda site to the Dodge site, with the Dodge site being the only one selling the utility trailers. He stated that they have always used the Dodge site for delivery since it had an easier access off of Richmond Road. He stated that in the past these trailers have been moved to the Honda store. Mr. Dodson did state that the inventory would be in the back of the site. He stated that the twelve spaces up at the front of the site would be for display only.

Mr. Kennedy asked about the display that was at the Dodge site at one point

Mr. Dodson stated the only units stored at the Dodge site were those that had already been sold and were waiting to be picked up. He assured the Planning Commission that his company has never displayed trailers for sale at the Dodge site.

There being no further public comments, Ms. Hughes closed the public hearing.

Ms. Jones made a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Kennedy seconded the motion.

ln a roll call vote the application was approved. (6-0) AYE: Krapf, Jones, Kennedy, Billups, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

D. ZO-10-07 Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Affordable Housing

Ms. Kate Sipes gave staff's report requesting a revision to the definition of affordable housing at it appears in the Zoning Ordinance. The Cluster Overlay district allows for the possibility of a density bonus for developments that provide affordable units. She stated that in order to provide the incentive intended through this section of the ordinance, staff believes the definition should be revised to provide sales prices that more closely reflect recent market activity. She further stated that if approved the revised definition would not include an actual revised sales price but rather would require target sales prices to be determined by the Office of Housing each year, using any and all data available to them, and present it to the Board of Supervisors each year for endorsement. Ms. Sipes stated the Policy Committee unanimously recommended approval of the proposed language. Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of this zoning ordinance amendment to the Board of Supervisors.

Mr. Kennedy made a motion to approve the revision.

Ms. Jones seconded the motion.

In a roll call vote the application was approved. (6-0) AYE: Krapf, Jones, Kennedy, Billups, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

E. <u>ZO-09-07 Zoning Ordinance Amendment - Wireless Communications</u>

Mr. Purse stated that staff has received a request from AT&T/Cingular Wireless Communications to amend the Zoning Ordinance to allow for alternative mounted wireless communication antennas atop water towers over the height of 120°. He stated that the proposed language would allow alternative mounted structures over 60 feet, but not exceeding the maximum height of the already approved structure with an approved height waiver. Mr. Purse stated that staff believes it is important to allow alternative

mounted structures on already approved structures in order to minimize the need for conventional Wireless Communication Towers in the County and to avoid visual intrusion wherever possible. The Policy Committee unanimously recommended approval of this revision, and staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to the Board of Supervisors.

Mr. Kennedy made a motion for approval.

Mr. Krapf seconded the motion.

In a roll call vote the application was approved. (6-0) AYE: Krapf, Jones, Kennedy, Billups, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

F. <u>ZO-08-07 Zoning Ordinance Amendment – Residential Cluster Master</u> Plan

Mr. Purse stated that the Planning Commission at its August 1st meeting recommended that staff look into amending the Residential Cluster section of the Zoning Ordinance in order to evaluate the Master Plan amendment process. He stated that staff, working with the Policy Committee, looked at the other sections of the Ordinance that deal with Master Plans, and on the recommendation of the committee members, altered the Residential Cluster language to more closely mirror other sections of the Ordinance (mixed-use and PUD) that allow for development plan consistency to be reviewed by the DRC. Staff removed the section that allowed for an amendment to the master plan to be approved administratively. Staff has also added a section that would allow the Planning Director to review minor changes to the development plan if it meets certain criteria. Mr. Purse stated that this new language is consistent with what is present in the other sections of the Ordinance, except it also allows flexibility for the Planning Director to review minor changes to the development plan. Staff recommends the Planning Commission recommend approval of this Ordinance amendment to the Board of Supervisors.

Mr. Obadal spoke about the paragraph relating to the general location of housing units or building units as shown on the master plan. He suggested that language from the Supplemental Ordinance 24-9 which makes a distinction of the location of housing and discusses the difference in the classifications of housing be added to the Ordinance.

Mr. Purse noted that staff would add "or classification" of housing units into Section 24-554 (d) (1) of the amended Ordinance language.

Mr, Krapf made a motion for approval with the added language suggested by Mr. Obadal.

Mr. Kennedy seconded the motion.

In a roll call vote the application was approved. (6-0) AYE: Krapf, Jones, Kennedy, Billups, Obadal, Hughes. (Absent: Fraley)

7. <u>COMMISSION DISCUSSIONS AND REQUESTS.</u>

Mr. Obadal congratulated Ms. Jones and Mr. Kennedy on their election to the Board of Supervisors, and the work they have done on the Planning Commission.

Ms. Hughes mentioned that she has been compiling information for new Commissioners that will be appointed. She felt that it is important for all Commissioners to gather information and documents for the new appointees to have. She also mentioned that December has several agenda items and it may take two meetings to cover everything that needs to be accomplished.

Mr. Kennedy stated that with the New Year there will be three new Commissioners to hear some very difficult cases. He stated that staff and the Planning Commission may need to work diligently with the applicants.

Ms. Hughes stated that further discussion is needed concerning this.

Mr. Kennedy asked Mr. Kinsman about the timing with him and Ms. Jones being sworn in on the Board of Supervisors.

Mr. Kinsman stated that the Code of Virginia allows for one Board member to serve on the Planning Commission.

Mr. Kennedy asked whether it would be appropriate for him or Ms. Jones to remain on the Planning Commission as transitional.

Mr. Krapf suggested that this topic be listed as an agenda item for discussion. This would allow for Commissioners input and to gather staff's input.

Ms. Hughes also stated that a special meeting may be needed to discuss this.

8. PLANNING DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Mr. Sowers stated he had nothing further to add to his report contained in the Commissioners' packets.

9. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business the Planning Commission meeting was adjourned

at 9:45 p/m

Shereen Hughes, Chairperson

O. Marvin Sowers, Jr., Secretary